

OFFICES AND OFFICERS

CHAPTER 377

HOUSE BILL NO. 1286

(Representatives Devlin, Froseth, Glassheim)
(Senators Andrist, Trenbeath, Triplett)

RECORDS DISCLOSURE, COPIES, AND VIOLATIONS

AN ACT to create and enact a new subsection to section 44-04-18.10 and a new subsection to section 44-04-19.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the release of confidential records disclosed to another entity and the sequestering of competitors in a competitive selection or hiring process; and to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 28-32-33, subsection 6 of section 39-08-13, subsection 8 of section 44-04-17.1, section 44-04-18, subsection 2 of section 44-04-18.1, sections 44-04-18.4, 44-04-18.12, and 44-04-19.1, subsections 5 and 6 of section 44-04-20, and section 44-04-21.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to discovery in adjudicative proceedings, providing copies of records, fees for copies, release of bidding records, litigation and investigatory records, meeting notices, and violations.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 28-32-33 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

2. In an adjudicative proceeding, a party must first show good cause, by written petition, and get the written approval of the hearing officer before obtaining discovery from an administrative agency. ~~Before obtaining discovery from an administrative agency by means of a request for the production of documents that are public records, the requesting party must have first made a diligent and good-faith effort to review the documents under existing general law procedures for the inspection of public records and access must have been denied.~~

¹⁸⁵ **SECTION 2. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 6 of section 39-08-13 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

6. Upon request of any person and upon payment of a fee of two dollars, the director or the law enforcement agency may furnish to a requestor a copy of that portion of an investigating officer's accident report which does not disclose the opinion of the reporting officer, if the report shows that the accident is one for which a driver is required to file a report under section 39-08-09.

¹⁸⁵ Section 39-08-13 was also amended by section 1 of House Bill No. 1098, chapter 334.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 8 of section 44-04-17.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

8. a. "Meeting" means a formal or informal gathering, whether in person or through ~~other~~ electronic means such as telephone or video conference, of:
 - (1) A quorum of the members of the governing body of a public entity regarding public business; or
 - (2) Less than a quorum of the members of the governing body of a public entity regarding public business, if the members attending one or more of such smaller gatherings collectively constitute a quorum and if the members hold the gathering for the purpose of avoiding the requirements of section 44-04-19.
- b. "Meeting" includes work sessions, but does not include chance or social gatherings where public business is not considered and does not include the attendance of members of a governing body at meetings of any national, regional, or state association to which the public entity, the governing body, or individual members belong.
- c. Notwithstanding subdivisions a and b, as applied to the legislative assembly, "meeting" means any gathering subject to section 14 of article IV of the Constitution of North Dakota.

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 44-04-18 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

44-04-18. Access to public records - Electronically stored information.

1. Except as otherwise specifically provided by law, all records of a public entity are public records, open and accessible for inspection during reasonable office hours. As used in this subsection, "reasonable office hours" includes all regular office hours of a public entity. If a public entity does not have regular office hours, the name and telephone number of a contact person authorized to provide access to the public entity's records must be posted on the door of the office of the public entity, if any. Otherwise, the information regarding the contact person must be filed with the secretary of state for state-level entities, for public entities defined in subdivision c of subsection 12 of section 44-04-17.1, the city auditor or designee of the city for city-level entities, or the county auditor or designee of the county for other entities.
2. Upon request for a copy of specific public records, any entity subject to subsection 1 shall furnish the requester one copy of the public records requested. A request need not be made in person or in writing, and the copy must be mailed upon request. A public entity may charge up to twenty-five cents per impression of a paper copy. As used in this section, "paper copy" means a one-sided or two-sided duplicated copy of a size not more than eight and one-half by fourteen inches. For any copy of a record that is not a paper copy as defined in this section, the public entity may charge a reasonable fee for making the copy. As used in this section, "reasonable fee" means the actual cost to the public

entity of making the copy, including labor, materials, and equipment. The entity may charge a reasonable fee for making or mailing the copy, or both for the actual cost of postage to mail a copy of a record. An entity may require payment before making or mailing the copy, or both. An entity may impose a fee not exceeding twenty-five dollars per hour per request, excluding the initial hour, for locating records if locating the records requires more than one hour. An entity may impose a fee not exceeding twenty-five dollars per hour per request, excluding the initial hour, for excising confidential or closed material under 44-04-18.10. If the entity is not authorized to use the fees to cover the cost of providing or mailing the copy, or both, or if a copy machine is not readily available, the entity may make arrangements for the copy to be provided or mailed, or both, by another entity, public or private, and the requester shall pay the fee to that other entity. As used in this subsection, "reasonable fee" means the actual cost to the public entity of making or mailing a copy of a record, or both, including labor, materials, postage, and equipment, but excluding any cost associated with excising confidential or closed material under section 44-04-18.10. An entity may impose a fee not exceeding twenty-five dollars per hour per request, excluding the initial hour, for locating records if locating the records requires more than one hour. This subsection does not apply to copies of public records for which a different fee is specifically provided by law.

3. Access to electronically stored records is free if the records are recoverable without the use of a computer backup. If a request is made for access to a record on a backup, or for a copy of an electronically stored record, in addition to the charge in this section, the public entity may charge a reasonable fee for providing the copies, including costs attributable to the use of information technology resources.
4. Except as provided in this subsection, nothing in this section requires a public entity to create or compile a record that does not exist. Access to an electronically stored record under this section, or a copy thereof, must be provided at the requester's option in either a printed document or through any other available medium. A computer file is not an available medium if no means exist to separate or prevent the disclosure of any closed or confidential information contained in that file. Except as reasonably necessary to reveal the organization of data contained in an electronically stored record, a public entity is not required to provide an electronically stored record in a different structure, format, or organization. This section does not require a public entity to provide a requester with access to a computer terminal.
4. 5. A state-level public entity as defined in subdivision a of subsection 12 of section 44-04-17.1 may establish procedures for providing access from an outside location to any computer data base or electronically filed or stored information maintained by that entity. The procedures must address the measures that are necessary to maintain the confidentiality of information protected by federal or state law. Except for access provided to another state-level public entity, the entity may charge a reasonable fee for providing that outside access. If the original information is keyed, entered, provided, compiled, or submitted by any political subdivision, the fees must be shared by the state and the political subdivision based on their proportional costs to make the data available.

- ~~5-~~ 6. Any request under this section for records in the possession of a public entity by a party to a criminal or civil action or adversarial administrative proceeding in which the public entity is a party, or by an agent of the party, must comply with applicable discovery rules and be made to the attorney representing that entity in the criminal or civil action or adversarial administrative proceeding. The public entity may deny a request from a party or an agent of a party under this subsection if the request seeks records that are privileged under applicable discovery rules.
- ~~6-~~ 7. A denial of a request for records made under this section must describe the legal authority for the denial and must be in writing if requested.
- ~~7-~~ 8. This section is violated when a person's right to review or receive a copy of a record that is not exempt or confidential is denied or unreasonably delayed or when a fee is charged in excess of the amount authorized in subsection 2.
- ~~8-~~ 9. It is not an unreasonable delay or a denial of access under this section to withhold from the public a record that is prepared at the express direction of, and for presentation to, a governing body until the record is mailed or otherwise provided to a member of the body or until the next meeting of the body, whichever occurs first. It also is not an unreasonable delay or a denial of access to withhold from the public a working paper or preliminary draft until a final draft is completed, the record is distributed to a member of a governing body or discussed by the body at an open meeting, or work is discontinued on the draft but no final version has been prepared, whichever occurs first.
10. For public entities headed by a single individual, it is not an unreasonable delay or a denial of access to withhold from the public a working paper or preliminary draft until a final draft is completed, or work is discontinued on the draft but no final version has been prepared, whichever occurs first. A working paper or preliminary draft shall be deemed completed if it can reasonably be concluded, upon a good faith review, that all substantive work on it has been completed.
- ~~9-~~ 11. A disclosure of a requested record under this section is not a waiver of any copyright held by the public entity in the requested record or of any applicable evidentiary privilege.

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 44-04-18.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

2. Except as otherwise specifically provided by law, personal information regarding a public employee contained in an employee's personnel record or given to the state or a political subdivision by the employee in the course of employment is exempt. As used in this section, "personal information" means a person's home address; home telephone number; photograph; medical information; motor vehicle operator's identification number; payroll deduction information; the name, address, telephone number, and date of birth of any dependent or emergency contact; any credit, debit, or electronic fund transfer card number; and any account number at a bank or other financial institution.

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 44-04-18.4 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

44-04-18.4. Confidentiality of trade secret, proprietary, commercial, and financial information.

1. Trade secret, proprietary, commercial, and financial information is confidential if it is of a privileged nature and it has not been previously publicly disclosed.
2. "Trade secret" includes:
 - a. A computer software program and components of a computer software program which are subject to a copyright or a patent, and any formula, pattern, compilation, program, device, method, technique, or process supplied to any state agency, institution, department, or board which is the subject of efforts by the supplying person or organization to maintain its secrecy and that may derive independent economic value, actual or potential, from not being generally known to, and not being readily ascertainable by proper means by, other persons or organizations that might obtain economic value from its disclosure or use; and
 - b. A discovery or innovation which is subject to a patent or a copyright, and any formula, pattern, compilation, program, device, method, technique, or process supplied to or prepared by any public entity which is the subject of efforts by the supplying or preparing entity, person, business, or industry to maintain its secrecy and that may derive independent economic value, actual or potential, from not being generally known to, and not being readily ascertainable by proper means by, any person who might obtain economic value from its disclosure or use.
3. "Proprietary information" includes information received from a sponsor of research conducted by a public entity, as well as any discovery or innovation generated by that research, technical, financial, and marketing information and other documents related to the commercialization, and any other discovery or innovation produced by the public entity which an employee or the entity intends to commercialize.
4. This section does not limit or otherwise affect a record pertaining to any rule of the state department of health or to any record pertaining to the application for a permit or license necessary to do business or to expand business operations within this state, except as otherwise provided by law.
5. Unless made confidential under subsection 1, the following economic development records and information are exempt:
 - a. Records and information pertaining to a prospective location of a business or industry, including the identity, nature, and location of the business or industry, when no previous public disclosure has been made by the business or industry of the interest or intent of the business or industry to locate in, relocate within, or expand within this state. This exemption does not include records

pertaining to the application for permits or licenses necessary to do business or to expand business operations within this state, except as otherwise provided by law.

- b. Trade secrets and commercial or financial information received from a person, business, or industry that is interested in or is applying for or receiving financing or technical assistance, or other forms of business assistance.
6. Unless made confidential under subsection 1 or made exempt under subsection 5, bids or proposals received by a public entity in response to a request for proposals by the public entity are exempt until such time all of the proposals have been received and opened by the public entity or until such time that all oral presentations regarding the proposals, if any, have been heard by the public entity. Records included with any bid or proposal naming and generally describing the entity submitting the proposal shall be open.

SECTION 7. A new subsection to section 44-04-18.10 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Confidential records that are authorized by law to be disclosed to another entity continue to be confidential in the possession of the receiving entity, except as otherwise provided by law.

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 44-04-18.12 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

44-04-18.12. Cooperative investigations and litigation. A record acquired under an agreement between or involving by the office of attorney general from a governmental agency in another jurisdiction and the attorney general or a nonpublic entity is confidential, except for the purposes specified in the agreement, exempt if the attorney general determines:

1. The record is necessary to monitor or enforce compliance with a law or order or to further a civil investigation or litigation by the state;
2. The record can be obtained only by agreeing to keep the record confidential; and
3. The record is treated as confidential or privileged by the provider of the records; and
3. The provider of the records has not agreed to waive the privilege relating to or confidentiality of the record.

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 44-04-19.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

44-04-19.1. Open records and open meetings - Exemptions for attorney work product, attorney consultation, and negotiation preparation.

1. Attorney work product is exempt from section 44-04-18. Attorney work product and copies thereof shall not be open to public inspection, examination, or copying unless specifically made public by the public entity receiving such work product.

2. Attorney consultation is exempt from section 44-04-19. That portion of a meeting of a governing body during which an attorney consultation occurs may be closed by the governing body under section 44-04-19.2.
3. Active investigatory work product is exempt from section 44-04-18.
4. "Attorney work product" means any document or record that:
 - a. Was prepared by an attorney representing a public entity or prepared at such an attorney's express direction;
 - b. Reflects a mental impression, conclusion, litigation strategy, or legal theory of that attorney or the entity; and
 - c. Was prepared exclusively for civil or criminal litigation, for adversarial administrative proceedings, or in anticipation of reasonably predictable civil or criminal litigation or adversarial administrative proceedings.
4. 5. "Attorney consultation" means any discussion between a governing body and its attorney in instances in which the governing body seeks or receives the attorney's advice regarding and in anticipation of reasonably predictable civil or criminal litigation or adversarial administrative proceedings or concerning pending civil or criminal litigation or pending adversarial administrative proceedings. Mere presence or participation of an attorney at a meeting is not sufficient to constitute attorney consultation.
6. "Investigatory work product" means records obtained, compiled, or prepared by a public entity in an effort to monitor and enforce compliance with the law or an order. Investigatory work product must be considered active as long as it is related to monitoring or enforcement activity conducted with a reasonable good-faith belief that it will lead to enforcement of the law or an order.
5. 7. "Adversarial administrative proceedings" include only those administrative proceedings where the administrative agency or institution of higher education acts as a complainant, respondent, or decisionmaker in an adverse administrative proceeding. This term does not refer to those instances where the administrative agency or institution acts in its own rulemaking capacity.
6. 8. Following the final completion of the civil or criminal litigation or the adversarial administrative proceeding, including the exhaustion of all appellate remedies, attorney work product must be made available for public disclosure by the public entity, unless another exception to section 44-04-18 applies or if disclosure would have an adverse fiscal effect on the conduct or settlement of other pending or reasonably predictable civil or criminal litigation or adversarial administrative proceedings, or the attorney work product reflects mental impressions, opinions, conclusions, or legal theories regarding potential liability of a public entity.
7. 9. A governing body may hold an executive session under section 44-04-19.2 to discuss negotiating strategy or provide negotiating instructions to its attorney or other negotiator regarding litigation,

adversarial administrative proceedings, or contracts, which are currently being negotiated or for which negotiation is reasonably likely to occur in the immediate future. An executive session may be held under this subsection only when an open meeting would have an adverse fiscal effect on the bargaining or litigating position of the public entity.

- 8- 10. Nothing in this section may be construed to waive any attorney-client privilege of a public entity as defined in subdivision c of subsection 12 of section 44-04-17.1 regarding matters that do not pertain to public business.

SECTION 10. A new subsection to section 44-04-19.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

A public entity may sequester all competitors in a competitive selection or hiring process from that portion of a public meeting wherein presentations are heard or interviews are conducted.

SECTION 11. AMENDMENT. Subsections 5 and 6 of section 44-04-20 of the North Dakota Century Code are amended and reenacted as follows:

5. The governing body's presiding officer has the responsibility of assuring that such public notice is given at the same time as such governing body's members are notified, and that this notice is available to anyone requesting such information. When a request is made for notice of meetings, the request is effective for one year unless a different time period is specified.
6. In the event of emergency or special meetings of a governing body, the person calling such a meeting shall also notify the public entity's official newspaper, if any, and any representatives of the news media which have requested to be so notified of such special or emergency meetings, of the time, place, date, and topics to be considered at the same time as such governing body's members are notified. If the public entity does not have an official newspaper, then it must notify the official newspaper of the county where its principal office or mailing address is located. Topics that may be considered at an emergency or special meeting are limited to those included in the notice.

SECTION 12. AMENDMENT. Section 44-04-21.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

44-04-21.1. Administrative review procedure.

1. Any interested person may request an attorney general's opinion to review a written denial of a request for records under section 44-04-18, a denial of access to a meeting under section 44-04-19, or other alleged violation of section 44-04-18, 44-04-19, 44-04-19.2, 44-04-20, or 44-04-21 by any public entity other than the legislative assembly or any committee thereof. A request made under this section must be made within thirty days of the alleged violation, except that a request based on allegations that a meeting occurred without the notice required by section 44-04-20, must be made within ninety days of the alleged violation. In preparing an opinion under this section, the attorney general has discretion to obtain and review a recording made under section 44-04-19.2. The attorney general may request and obtain

information claimed to be exempt or confidential for the purpose of determining whether the information is exempt or confidential. Any such information may not be released by the attorney general and may be returned to the provider of the information. The attorney general shall issue to the public entity involved an opinion on the alleged violation unless the request is withdrawn by the person requesting the opinion or a civil action has been filed involving the possible violation. If the request pertains to a public entity as defined in subdivision c of subsection 12 of section 44-04-17.1, the opinion must be issued to the public entity providing the public funds. In any opinion issued under this section, the attorney general shall base the opinion on the facts given by the public entity.

2. If the attorney general issues a written opinion concluding that a violation has occurred, the public entity has seven days after the opinion is issued, regardless of whether a civil action is filed under section 44-04-21.2, to disclose the record, to issue a notice of a meeting that will be held within a reasonable time to correct the violation, or to take steps to correct any other violation. If the public entity fails to take the required action within the seven-day period and the person requesting the opinion prevails in a civil action brought under section 44-04-21.2, the person must be awarded costs, disbursements, and reasonable attorney's fees in the action and on appeal. The consequences for failing to comply with an attorney general's opinion issued under this section will be the same as for other attorney general's opinions, including potential personal liability for the person or persons responsible for the noncompliance.
3. If a state-level public entity as defined in subdivision a of subsection 12 of section 44-04-17.1 does not comply in full with the attorney general's opinion, and a civil action is brought under section 44-04-21.2 or is reasonably predictable, the entity, at its sole cost and expense, shall retain separate counsel who has been approved and appointed by the attorney general as a special assistant attorney general to represent the entity in that action.

Approved April 14, 2005
Filed April 18, 2005

CHAPTER 378**SENATE BILL NO. 2202**

(Senators Wardner, Lyson)
(Representatives Haas, Maragos)

**ECONOMIC ASSISTANCE RECIPIENT RECORD
CONFIDENTIALITY**

AN ACT to create and enact a new section to chapter 44-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to exempting from the open records law records concerning individual recipients of economic assistance administered under the division of community services or a community action agency; and to declare an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 44-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Exemption of records relating to individual recipients of economic assistance or benefits. Records concerning individual applicants or recipients of economic assistance or support administered under the division of community services or a community action agency, including benefits or services, are exempt from section 44-04-18 and section 6 of article XI of the Constitution of North Dakota. These exempt records include applications, income or eligibility verification, assessments, or other personal, medical, or financial data.

SECTION 2. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure.

Approved March 22, 2005

Filed March 22, 2005

CHAPTER 379

HOUSE BILL NO. 1464

(Representatives Nelson, Belter, Onstad)
(Senators O'Connell, Wardner)

FEEDLOT PERMIT INFORMATION

AN ACT to create and enact a new section to chapter 44-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to information in feedlot permits.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 44-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Animal feeding operation record requests. The state department of health shall keep a written record of each individual who requests information and the type of information requested regarding an animal feeding operation permit. Within seven business days of receiving the request, the department shall provide written notice to the owner and operator of the animal feeding operation describing the type of information that has been requested and the name and address of the requester. If an individual makes inquiries on more than three files in any one request, the department shall charge the individual a fee sufficient to cover the cost of mailing the notice to the owners and operators whose files are being examined and a fee for copying the records as allowed under section 44-04-18.

Approved April 14, 2005

Filed April 18, 2005

CHAPTER 380

SENATE BILL NO. 2353

(Senator Wardner)
(Representative Vigesaa)

NOTARY REGULATION

AN ACT to amend and reenact sections 44-06-02, 44-06-13, and 44-06-13.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to regulation of notaries public.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 44-06-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

44-06-02. Commission - Record - Fee - Notice. The secretary of state shall issue a commission to each notary public appointed by the secretary of state. The notary shall post the commission in a conspicuous place in the notary's office. The secretary of state shall collect ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-six dollars for the issuance of the commission. The secretary of state shall remit all fees collected under this section to the state treasurer for deposit in the general fund. The secretary of state shall keep a record of appointments and the date of the expiration of the appointments. The secretary of state shall notify each notary public by mail at least thirty days before the expiration of the notary public's term of the date upon which the notary public's commission will expire. The notice must be addressed to the notary public at the last-known place of residence. Each notary public issued a commission shall notify the secretary of state by mail within sixty days of any change of address. If a notary fails to notify the secretary of state within sixty days of a change of address, the secretary of state may impose a late fee in the amount of ten dollars. The notary shall pay any late fee imposed by the secretary of state before the renewal of the notary's commission.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 44-06-13 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

44-06-13. Acting as notary when disqualified - Penalty. A notary public who exercises the duties of a notary's office with knowledge that the notary's commission has expired or has been revoked or that the notary is disqualified otherwise or any other person who acts as a notary or performs a notarial act without a lawful notary commission is guilty of an infraction, and, if appropriate, the notary's commission must be revoked by the secretary of state using the procedure under chapter 28-32.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 44-06-13.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

44-06-13.1. Prohibited acts - Penalty. A notary public may not notarize a signature on a document if:

1. The document was not first signed or re-signed in the presence of the notary public, in the case of a jurat, or in the case of a certificate of acknowledgment, was not acknowledged in the presence of the notary public.

2. The name of the notary public or the spouse of the notary public appears on the document as a party to the transaction.
3. The signature is that of the notary public or the spouse of the notary public.
4. Except as otherwise provided by law, the notary public uses a name or initial in notarizing the document other than as it appears on the notary's commission. However, such an act by a notary by itself does not affect the validity of the document.
5. The date of the jurat or certificate of acknowledgment is not the actual date the document is to be notarized or the jurat or certificate of acknowledgment is undated.
6. The signature on the document or the notarial certificate is not an original signature, except as otherwise provided by law.
7. The notary is falsely or fraudulently signing or notarizing a document, jurat, or certificate of acknowledgment or in any other way is impersonating or assuming the identity of another notary.
8. Within five years of the date of issuance of a commission or renewal of a commission, the notary is convicted of a criminal offense which the secretary of state determines has a direct bearing upon the notary's ability to serve the public as a notary public.

A notary public who violates this section is guilty of an infraction and the notary public's commission may be revoked by the secretary of state or the secretary of state may impose a lesser sanction using the procedure under chapter 28-32.

Approved March 30, 2005

Filed March 31, 2005

CHAPTER 381

HOUSE BILL NO. 1091

(Government and Veterans Affairs Committee)
(At the request of the Office of Management and Budget)

BID OPENINGS AND PREFERENCES

AN ACT to amend and reenact section 44-08-01.1 and subsection 4 of section 54-44.4-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to bid opening and preference for tie bids.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 44-08-01.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

44-08-01.1. Bids to be sealed - Designation of time and place for opening - Preference for tie bids. Notwithstanding any other provisions of the North Dakota Century Code, the governing bodies of the political subdivisions of the state of North Dakota shall accept only sealed bids, whenever by law or administrative decision they are required to call for, advertise, or solicit bids for the purchase of personal property and equipment. Whenever a political subdivision of this state calls for, advertises, or solicits sealed bids, it shall designate a time and place for the opening of such bids. If all of the bids are not rejected, the purchase must be made from the bidder submitting the lowest and best bid meeting or exceeding the specifications called for set out in the invitation for bids. In the event that two or more bids contain identical pricing or receive identical evaluation scores, preference must be given to bids submitted by North Dakota vendors.

¹⁸⁶ **SECTION 2. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 4 of section 54-44.4-09 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

4. The procurement officer may authorize receipt of a bid or proposal from a vendor that is not on the list of approved vendors if the procurement officer makes a written determination that it is in the best interest of the state to receive the bid or proposal. The successful bidder or offeror must become approved before the award and the existence of this approval requirement must be stated in the solicitation. If an unapproved vendor is selected for award, the vendor's bid or proposal may be rejected if that vendor fails to become approved within sixty days or within a shorter period as specified in writing by the procurement officer. Before issuing a solicitation, the procurement officer may waive the approval requirement if the procurement officer determines, in consultation with the secretary of state, that registration with the secretary of state and appointment of an agent for service of process in this state are not required. The waiver of the approval requirement must be stated in the solicitation. ~~In the event of a tie bid or~~

¹⁸⁶ Section 54-44.4-09 was also amended by section 18 of House Bill No. 1273, chapter 384, and section 2 of House Bill No. 1341, chapter 528.

proposal, the approved vendor must be given that two or more bids contain identical pricing or receive identical evaluation scores, preference must be given pursuant to section 44-08-01.1. If the application of section 44-08-01.1 does not result in the award of a contract, preference must be given to bids submitted by vendors approved under this section.

Approved March 30, 2005

Filed March 31, 2005

CHAPTER 382

SENATE BILL NO. 2195

(Senators Krebsbach, Heitkamp, Wardner)
(Representatives Glassheim, D. Johnson, Maragos)

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE LODGING AND MEAL REIMBURSEMENT

AN ACT to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 44-08-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to reimbursement of lodging expenses and allowances for meals for state and political subdivision officers and employees.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

¹⁸⁷ **SECTION 1. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 2 of section 44-08-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

2. Expenses for travel within the state must be reimbursed at the following rates for each quarter of any twenty-four-hour period:
 - a. First quarter is from six a.m. to twelve noon and the sum must be ~~four~~ five dollars. First quarter reimbursement may not be made if travel began after seven a.m.
 - b. Second quarter is from twelve noon to six p.m. and the sum must be ~~six~~ seven dollars and fifty cents.
 - c. Third quarter is from six p.m. to twelve midnight and the sum must be ~~ten~~ twelve dollars and fifty cents.
 - d. Fourth quarter is from twelve midnight to six a.m. and the sum must be the actual lodging expenses not to exceed ~~forty-five~~ fifty dollars plus any additional applicable state or local taxes. A political subdivision may reimburse an elective or appointive officer, employee, representative, or agent for actual lodging expenses.

Approved April 18, 2005

Filed April 20, 2005

¹⁸⁷ Section 44-08-04 was also amended by section 1 of House Bill No. 1129, chapter 383.

CHAPTER 383

HOUSE BILL NO. 1129

(Government and Veterans Affairs Committee)
(At the request of the State Board of Higher Education)

MEAL ALLOWANCE OUTSIDE US

AN ACT to amend and reenact subsections 4 and 5 of section 44-08-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the allowance for state officers and employees for meals outside the continental United States.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

¹⁸⁸ **SECTION 1. AMENDMENT.** Subsections 4 and 5 of section 44-08-04 of the North Dakota Century Code are amended and reenacted as follows:

4. The allowance for meals in ~~Canada, noncontinental United States and overseas nonforeign areas, including Alaska, and Hawaii~~ may not exceed one and one-half times the current continental United States standard rate, and Guam, is equal to the per diem meals rate in the city for which a claim is made on that day as established by rule for federal employees established by the United States general services administration per diem committee.
5. The allowance for meals outside the ~~continental United States, Canada, Alaska, and Hawaii~~ may not exceed two times the current continental United States standard rate is equal to the per diem meals rate in the city for which a claim is made on that day as established by rule for federal employees established by the United States ~~general services administration~~ department of state.

Approved March 8, 2005

Filed March 8, 2005

¹⁸⁸ Section 44-08-04 was also amended by section 1 of Senate Bill No. 2195, chapter 382.